ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
SENATE JUDI CI ARY STANDI NG COW TTEE
February 26, 2007
1:33 p. m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Senator Hollis French, Chair
Senator Charlie Huggins, Vice Chair
Senator Bill W el echowski

Senator Lesil MQiire

Senator Gene Therriaul t

MEMBERS ABSENT
Al'l nmenbers present
COW TTEE CALENDAR

SENATE BI LL NO 13
“"An Act prohibiting a legislator from providing consulting
services to a person in the private sector or agreeing to accept
consulting fees froma person in the private sector."

HEARD AND HELD

PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: SB 13

SHORT TITLE: BAN CONSULTI NG CONTRACTS W TH LEG SLATORS
SPONSOR(s): SENATOR(s) STEVENS

01/ 16/ 07 (S) PREFI LE RELEASED 1/ 5/ 07

01/ 16/ 07 (S) READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
01/ 16/ 07 (S) JUD, STA

01/ 22/ 07 (S) JUD AT 1:30 PM BELTZ 211

01/ 22/ 07 (S) Heard & Hel d

01/ 22/ 07 (S) M NUTE( JUD)

W TNESS REG STER

Senator Gary Stevens

Al aska State Capitol

Juneau, AK

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Sponsor of SB 13

Joyce Anderson, Admi nistrator
Select Commttee on Legislative Ethics

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -1- February 26, 2007



PO Box 101468
Anchor age, AK 99510
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Commented on Version \Mof SB 13

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

CHAIR HOLLIS FRENCH called the Senate Judiciary Standing
Commttee neeting to order at 1:33:03 PM Present at the call to
order were Senator Huggins, Senator MQuire, Senator Therriault,
Senat or W el echowski, and Chair French.

SB 13- BAN CONSULTI NG CONTRACTS W TH LEGQ SLATORS

CHAI R FRENCH announced the consideration of SB 13 and asked for
a notion to adopt Version Mconmttee substitute (CS).

1:33: 31 PM
SENATOR HUGA NS nade a notion to adopt CS for SB 13, | abel ed 25-
LS0106\M as the working docunent.

SENATOR THERRI AULT obj ected for discussion purposes.

CHAI R FRENCH expl ai ned that the bill achieves the sponsor’s goal
and al so includes suggestions from the ethics conmmttee. Those
suggestions could have been included in any ethics bill noving
t hrough t he body, he stated.

1:34:19 PM

SENATOR GARY STEVENS, sponsor of SB 13, thanked the chair for
working with him and doing “the right job.” He restated his
original principle, which is that a legislator should not get a
consulting job because he or she is a legislator. “People should
not be trading on the fact that sonmeone is a |egislator and
getting sonething that is unavailable to others.” That criterion
is met in Section 6, he said.

1:35:39 PM

SENATOR THERRI AULT questioned whether it is really clear that
the prohibition is against being hired and receiving a salary
for consulting work. He asked if this would prohibit a group
from reinbursing a legislator for travel expenses for going
sonmewhere to give a talKk.

SENATOR STEVENS said fromthe start it was clear that the devi
is in the details, but the idea is that people should not be
getting conpensated a second tine for work that they are doing
as | egislators.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 2- February 26, 2007



CHAIR FRENCH noted the packet of definitions for |egislative,
admnistrative, and political action to make it clear what is
and what is not being prohibited. Legislators are paid by the
State of Alaska to carry out the primary mssion of effecting
changes in the law. No one should pay legislators a separate
salary to do that for personal and private interests. “Wre
here on behal f of the public,” he said.

In certain instances legislators nay appear in front of an
adm ni strative agency seeking a decision under the law as it
stands. That is a separate idea, though, and there is no
intention to interfere with or change that.

Speaking to Senator Therrriault’s hypothetical situation, he
said SB 13 would not prevent a legislator from going sonmewhere
and speaking before a group and he thought there is already a
separate ethics rule against legislators receiving speaking
fees. Traveling with a group or traveling to a neeting would not
be covered here because the Ilegislator is not seeking or
introducing legislation on behalf of the particular group.
“You're just going to |learn what they have to offer,” he said.

SENATOR STEVENS suggested that the conmttee substitute wll
“reestablish the bond of trust between the legislature and the
public so that they will honor this institution as nmuch as those
of us who are devoting many years of our lives to it.”

SENATOR THERRI AULT asked if the ethics comrittee submtted
suggested | anguage or just a list of ideas for the CS

CHAI R FRENCH said the ethics commttee brought ideas, which were
submtted to the legislative drafters.

1:39:47 PM
CHAI R FRENCH hi ghl i ghted the sectional analysis.

Section 1 prohibits distribution of a legislative newsletter
within 30 days preceding an election. If a legislator wants to
comunicate with voters in that tine period, he or she should do
so with canpaign noneys and not with state nobneys. The ethics
commttee has tried to get this into statute in the |ast several
years and this was an opportunity to acconmpdate that, he said.

SENATOR McGUI RE asked if that isn't it already in statute.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 3- February 26, 2007



JOYCE ANDERSON, Admi nistrator, Select Committee on Legislative
Et hics, explained that there is sonmething in statute prohibiting
use of state funds in the 90 days preceding an election. That
has to do with things like using the state print shop to send
out communications. However, it does not prohibit a |egislator
from sending out a newsletter at any tinme during the year if the
| egi slator’s personal or poet account funds are used to pay for
it.

SENATOR McGUI RE said she thought there already was a prohibition
so it is good to clarify the point.

SENATOR THERRI AULT read from Section 1, (a)(2)(K) and asked if a
| egislator could send out a newsletter using personal or poet
account funds; they are not public funds.

M5. ANDERSON replied her interpretation of the |anguage is that
it does not stipulate what funds. It sinply prohibits sending a

newsl etter during the 30 days preceding a state election. *“It
woul d prohibit you from using personal funds or poet funds
because you couldn’t send it out at all,” she said.

CHAI R FRENCH read the foll ow ng:

(a) A legislator of legislative enployee nay not

(2) use public funds, ... ; this paragraph
does not prohibit
(K) a | egi sl ator from sendi ng any

comunication in the form of a newsletter to the legislator’s
constituents, unless
(i) the comunication is sent
during the 30-day period imrediately preceding a state
el ecti on;

CHAIR FRENCH said he can see it both ways so he would like to
hear fromthe drafter to make sure the right result is achieved.

1:44: 20 PM

SENATOR THERRI AULT said certainly there could be a higher degree
of prohibition on the use of public funds than personal funds,
but he wants to know exactly what would be allowed as far as
personal funds are concer ned.

SENATOR McGQUI RE said there are two separate issues. The first,
which is clear, is that public funds should not be used to send
a newsletter out during a canpaign season. The second issue is
whether a communication can be sent 30 days preceding an

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -4- February 26, 2007



el ection using private funds. You mght want to reserve that
right, she said, because she could inmagi ne sonething happening
in a district during that time that would require an immedi ate
response.

SENATOR THERRI AULT recalled that this last summer he sent
notices out to certain neighborhoods rem nding residents about
| ocal Departnent of Transportation road projects. He enclosed
preaddressed postcards and suggested that now was the tine to
corment on how traffic would be routed and the scope of the
project. “I would think that no matter whether we're in a
canmpai gn season or not, you still have those types of things
that are comng and going all the time,” he said.

CHAIR FRENCH said |egislative comrunications are acceptable at
any tinme, but legislative newsletters are a little different.

They are an update that | egislators wuse to advertise
acconplishnents and to et constituents know about t he
legislator’s priorities. It doesn't particularly matter when

t hose goes out.

CHAI R FRENCH asked the conmttee to think about that section to
make sure that it is “distinguishing between necessary
| egi sl ati ve comruni cations — those funded with your own persona
noney and then those funded with public noney on a less tinely
basis.”

1:48: 28 PM

CHAIR FRENCH said Section 2 tracks current practice. It
clarifies that disclosures by legislators and |egislative
enpl oyees nust be filed in witing and forwarded to the
respective houses for publication.

MS. ANDERSON said although this is current practice the | anguage
is mssing fromthe statutes. The addition will synchronize the
| anguage wi th other disclosure |anguage that is in statute.

CHAIR FRENCH asked if Section 2 references the Select Conmttee
on Legislative Ethics and if the context nakes it clear where it
will fall in the statute.

MS. ANDERSON sai d yes.

SENATOR THERRI AULT asked what particular disclosure it talks
about .

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 5- February 26, 2007



MS. ANDERSON said it is a disclosure that deals with contracts
and | eases through the state.

1:49: 38 PM

CHAI R FRENCH said Section 3 replaces the words “witten report”
with the word “disclosure” to nmake the |anguage consistent with
ot her sections of the statute. Also it anends | anguage to change
publication requirenments from “within three weeks after the
filing date” to the next regular publication.

M5. ANDERSON said this disclosure also deals with state prograns
and loans. Al the other disclosures talk about when the next
regul ar publication is made so this aligns the |anguage wth
ot her di scl osure sections.

1: 50: 30 PM
CHAIR FRENCH said Section 4 adds the Ofice of Victins’ Rights
to the list of enployees that are not eligible for special

di scounts given to legislators and legislative staff to make
their stay during the session nore affordable.

M5. ANDERSON explained that Legislative Affairs Agency, the
Ofice of the Chief Cerk, the Ofice of the Senate Secretary,
Legi slative Budget and Audit, and the Ofice of the Onrbudsman
are not eligible. The ethics conmttee thought it appropriate to
al so include the Ofice of Victine’ Rights to that |ist.

1:51: 35 PM

CHAI R FRENCH said Section 5 makes another conform ng anmendnent
to provisions concerning legislator and legislative enployee
di scl osures.

M5. ANDERSON explained that this section sinply nakes the
| anguage consi st ent wth other sections. It deals wth
di sclosing two kinds of gifts. One is related to travel for a
| egi sl ative purpose and the other is any type of gift.

1:52: 45 PM

CHAIR FRENCH said Section 6 is the heart of the bill.
Ref erencing the definitions for admnistrative, |egislative, and
political action that had been distributed, he said the bill
uses the definition of “admnistrative action” from Section
24.45.171 as foll ows:

(1) "admnistrative action"™ nmeans the proposal,

drafting, devel opnent, consi derati on, anendnent ,
adopti on, approval , pronul gati on, i ssuance,

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 6- February 26, 2007



nodi fication, rejection, or postponenment by any state
agency of any rule or regulation, or any other quasi-
|l egislative or quasi-judicial action or proceeding
whet her or not governed by AS 44.62 (Adnministrative
Procedure Act);

CHAIR FRENCH said the idea is that it nmeans shaping rules in
conformance with the Administrative Procedure Act. It does not
mean seeking a decision from or appearing in front of. It is
about changing the rules to prohibit individuals from being paid
to cone to Juneau to change the rules on behalf of an outside
client.

VS. ANDERSON advi sed that there is a definition for
adm nistrative action in the ethics code in AS 24.60.990 (a)(1).
She suggested that if the conmttee wants to use a different
definition it should be nentioned in this particul ar section.

CHAIR FRENCH replied his intention is to tighten the |anguage in
Section 6 so there is no question about what is being adopted
and which definition is being referenced.

SENATOR THERRI AULT asked if an attorney who is a |egislator
would be prohibited from engaging in the kind of activity
outlined in the definition.

CHAIR FRENCH said the short answer is yes. If a legislator is
enpl oyed by a client to shape a regulation, it |looks |ike he or
she is being paid to change the law. That is too close to the
line; legislators are elected and paid to shape and change the
law in the public’'s interest.

1: 56: 20 PM

SENATOR McGQUIRE said she would like to work with the ethics
committee to develop a set of practical guidelines. If Al aska
wants a citizen legislature and legislators are in Juneau to
wear different hats, she questioned how they put the hats on and
take them off in a way that is docunented, makes sense, 1is
transparent to the public, and conports with the spirit of this
I aw.

CHAIR FRENCH said it would be helpful to get sonme hypothetica
or real-life scenarios and asked M. Anderson if the ethics
conmi ttee had considered doing that.

M5. ANDERSON sai d she does have exanples of questions related to
being a legislator and having a conflict of interest with regard

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -7- February 26, 2007



to outside enploynent. She agreed to add to those exanples and
said the conmttee would definitely want to provide that to
| egi sl ators to provide guidelines.

2:00: 27 PM

SENATOR HUGGE NS asked if a legislator who has a famly nenber
who is a workers conpensation attorney would be precluded from
wor ki ng on that kind of |egislation.

M5. ANDERSON said she didn't believe there would be a conflict
unless the legislator tried to influence a decision, but the
guestion is too broad to give a nore direct answer. “As usual
with ethics it is a factual situation that you' re working on
that has a | ot of conponents to it,” she said.

CHAI R FRENCH asked if this |law would prohibit a |egislator that
was an attorney who specialized in corkers’ conp cases from
representing a client before the workers’ conp conmm ssion.

M5. ANDERSON said she is famliar with the definition for
adm nistrative action in the ethics code, but not with this
definition so she woul d rather not say.

CHAIR FRENCH said that exception (A) <clearly states that
adm nistrative action does not include ®“a proceeding or an
action to determne the rights or duties of a person under
exi sting statutes, " Therefore, if he were to represent an
injured client before the workers’ conp conm ssion on the issue
of whether or not he was hurt on the job, that would be a
determnation of his client’s rights under existing statutes.
Clearly, that is not what we are trying to prohibit, he said.

Under the sanme scenario he would be prohibited from trying to
influence a legislative commttee to change the worker’s conp
laws arguing that they are unfair. That's the difference, he
sai d.

SENATOR McGUI RE said therein lies the rub. Using exanples from
workers’ conp and from fisheries, she said that the idea of a
citizen legislature is to have people that have done these
things. But there should be a system so that people don’'t get
themselves in trouble and vyet are able to contribute
meani ngfully in making policy in the state.

CHAI R FRENCH said when a fisherman |egislator is working on fish

laws he or she is being paid by the state to change the |aw.
During sumrer fishing season that legislator is being paid to

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 8- February 26, 2007



fish and that is the difference. “It’s not as if you can't ever
conbi ne your area of expertise with the |legislature. You have to
be able to do that,” he enphasized.

SENATOR HUGA NS said it makes him nervous to think he can help
craft a law and then go to his occupation and benefit fromthat.
“I won’t buy into that one at all,” he asserted.

CHAIR FRENCH said the observation is fair, but he did not see
how that could that be prevented. He urged caution before saying
a fisherman can not be involved in making fish | aw changes.

SENATOR HUGA NS said he did not agree with the exanple of going
to fish and benefiting from the law. In fact he would do the
opposi te.

SENATOR MGURE said this is why California went to a
prof essional legislature. In that system the decision to serve
as a legislator is simlar to going on a mssion or sabbatical
It is alife choice that comes with consequences and benefits. A
person chooses to be a public servant for a set period in
exchange for the ability to practice law, be a doctor, or a
fisherman. It’s a social experinment to try to conbine a career
with the concept of servant |eadership, she said.

2: 09: 44 PM

SENATOR W ELECHOWBKI pointed out that a small business person is
affected by many legislative decisions including workers

conpensation rates, health insurance rates, and mninum wage
increases. He asked if this law would be saying that a small
busi ness person could not participate when those issues are
i nvol ved.

CHAIR FRENCH said the short answer is no. Wen legislators are
working in the capitol building they are being paid by the state
to make changes to the laws. Wen |egislators |eave the building
and go back to their business, they are paid to operate that
busi ness. Although the two are related, they are still distinct
in ways that nost peopl e understand.

There is no conflict for a restaurateur to also be a |egislator.
There would be a conflict if he or she were hired by a
restaurant association to defeat the mninmm wage increase.
Clearly that would be an ethical violation and a violation of
this law. Wiat we are trying to prohibit is legislators being
hired to effect public policy changes, he stated.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -9- February 26, 2007



SENATOR McGQUIRE said the |arger philosophical question is the
problem It is not uncomon to have constituents cone to her
house so she isn't sure there is a |line distinguishing between
bei ng i n Juneau and bei ng hone.

CHAI R FRENCH acknowl edged that the observation is fair, but he
was using the capital netaphorically.

2:12: 47 PM

SENATOR HUGGE NS commented that |egislators have to assune that
the public is viewng them as officials even when they are
working in their profession and not as a legislator. That is the
maj or skew in the ethics of conduct, he said.

CHAI R FRENCH urged caution. If a legislator is a contractor that
successfully bids on a state building, there will be a question
of whether the bid was successful because it was the best bid or
because he or she also happened to be the co-chair of the
finance conmtt ee.

2:15:15 PM
CHAIR FRENCH said the next definition, which comes from AS
24.45.171, is “legislative action.” It reads as foll ows:

(9) "legislative action" neans the preparation,
research, drafting, i ntroducti on, consi deration
nodi fi cation, anendnent, approval, passage, enactnent,
def eat, or rejection of any bill, resol ution,

anendnent, notion, report, nom nation, appointnent, or
other matter by the legislature, or by a standing,
interim or special commttee of the l|egislature, or
by a menber or enployee of the legislature acting in
an official capacity; it includes, but is not limted
to, the action of the governor in approving or vetoing
a bill or the action of the legislature in
considering, overriding, or sustaining that veto and
the action of the legislature in considering,
confirmng, or rejecting an executive appointnent of
t he governor;

SENATOR W ELECHOWBKI asked for clarification that the intent is

not to prohibit a legislator who is an attorney from practicing
in private practice to research bills.

CHAI R FRENCH acknow edged that the term “research” mght need to
be nodi fi ed.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -10- February 26, 2007



SENATOR HUGA NS noted the definition of “imrediate famly” and
asked if it hadn’'t been expanded beyond spouse and dependent
children of an individual.

M5. ANDERSON said the ethics code has two different definitions
of imediate famly. The definition under AS 24.60.080(k) is
gquite expansive while the other definition includes just the
spouse or donestic partner and any dependent children |iving
wi th the individual

CHAIR FRENCH said the commttee had the nore narrow definition

SENATOR HUGGE NS questioned whether the commttee wanted to
expand the definition.

CHAI R FRENCH suggested he m ght have that conversation wth Ms.
Ander son.

2:19:38 PM

CHAI R FRENCH said the final definition for the conmttee to take
up is “political action,” which conmes from AS 24.60.990. It is
with respect to the things legislators get paid to do.

(13) "political action” means conduct in which
public officials, including |legislators or |egislative
enpl oyees, use their official position or political
contacts to exercise influence on state and |ocal
governnment enployees or entities; it includes but is
not limted to endorsing and pledging support or
actively supporting a legislative matter, a noni nee,
or a candidate for public office;

CHAIR FRENCH clarified that the statute would prohibit
| egislators from getting paid to do those things. A nunber of
| egislators engage in those activities outside the capitol
bui I di ng, but not for conpensati on.

CHAIR FRENCH asked the nmnmenbers to give Section 6 and the
definitions particular thought and consideration. There is tine
to further tighten the definitions before the hearing on
Thur sday, he sai d.

2:21:12 PM

CHAI R FRENCH said Section 7 requires all disclosures to be filed
wi thin 30 days of the beginning of the interest or association.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -11- February 26, 2007



M5. ANDERSON explained that the ethics comittee nmade the
recommendati on because it would be nore consistent and easier to
adm nister if 30 days applied to all the disclosure dates.

SENATOR Mc@QU RE said she would like that and it would be better
yet if APOCC filings were aligned as well.

CHAIR FRENCH said the ethics commttee had a good idea, but
i ncl uding APOC m ght be nore filing than a person is ready to do
on any given day.

SENATOR THERRI AULT referenced travel to the energy conference
and asked if the disclosure requirenent for receiving a benefit
for legislative purpose is 30 days.

M5. ANDERSON said that is correct; travel disclosures are always
due within 30 days. The bill brings all the other disclosures
into alignment with that tinefrane.

2:24.05 PM

CHAIR FRENCH said Section 8 allows the chair of the ethics
commttee to designate an alternate |egislative nenber to attend
a nmeeting if the regular nenber is unable to attend. Currently
the alternate nenber only serves if the regular nenber has a
conflict.

M5. ANDERSON said this will nmake ethics conmttee business nore
tinmely. The ethics conmttee has five public nenbers and four
| egi slative nenbers and a quorum requires three public nenbers
and two |egislative nenbers to be present. There have been tines
that a neeting had to be reschedul ed because | egislative nenbers
had conflicting conm tnents.

SENATOR THERRI AULT you asked if the commttee wanted the power
to seat the alternate or any other |egislator.

M5. ANDERSON replied it would be to seat the alternate.

CHAIR FRENCH further clarified that the alternate |egislative
menber would already have been nanmed to the ethics conmttee
t hrough the normal | egislative process.

M5. ANDERSON agr eed.

SENATOR THERRI AULT explained that his confusion cane about

because the sectional analysis talks about “an” alternate
| egi sl ative menber rather than “the” alternate.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -12- February 26, 2007



CHAI R FRENCH acknow edged t he expl anati on.
SENATOR W ELECHOWBKI asked if that power doesn’t already exist.

M5. ANDERSON el aborated that the alternate is seated only if the
regul ar menber has a conflict. Also, the regular nenber could
not sit on the commttee if he or she is the one requesting the
advisory opinion, is the subject of a conplaint, or has
informati on about a conplaint. Legislative |legal had issued an
opinion stating that the commttee does not have the authority
to seat the alternate when there is not a quorum

2:26:55 PM
CHAIR FRENCH said Section 9 deletes the requirenent for sem -
annual publication of decisions and advisory opinions; it

provides for annual publication. Public decisions have been
publ i shed annually since 1999 and advisory opinions have been
publ i shed annual |y since 1995, he stated.

SENATOR MGU RE asked if this 1is relative to the ethics
advi sories that come out every nonth or so.

M5. ANDERSON said no, the newsletters wll continue to be
published on a bi-nmonthly or nonthly basis depending on need

This refers to the annual publication of formal binding advisory
opinions and public decisions. She noted that the ethics
commttee issues public decisions after a conplaint has been
filed.

SENATOR HUGE NS commented this does not appear to be tightening
neasur e.

M5. ANDERSON replied the bi-nmonthly newsletter would contain the
deci sions that have been issued, but they would not be published
until the annual publication.

SENATOR HUGGE NS opi ned that this reduces comrunication

CHAIR FRENCH asked if it is correct that the ethics committee
woul d publish half as often.

M5. ANDERSON said yes, but the reconmendati on was made because
some years there has been just one advisory opinion issued. If
the nunbers increase in years to conme there would be a need for
nore a sem -annual publication

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -13- February 26, 2007



CHAIR FRENCH restated that this brings the statute into
conformty with practice. If the volunme increases in years to
cone, the legislature could call for nore frequent publication.

V5. ANDERSON agr eed.

2:30: 53 PM
CHAIR FRENCH said Section 10 clarifies the |language to nmake it
clear that advisory opinions will be issued with sufficient

deletions to prevent disclosing the identity of the person
requesting the opinion as well as any other persons naned in the
request .

M5. ANDERSON explained that individuals who request advisory
opi nions specify whether the request is confidential or not.
Section 10 is «clean-up Jlanguage to meke sure that if
confidentiality is requested the advisory opinion is issued with
deletions to prevent disclosure of the identities of the people
i nvol ved. It also clarifies that deliberations would be
confidential.

SENATOR HUGA NS asked for verification that he could request an
advi sory opinion and ask that it be nade public.

M5. ANDERSON said confidentiality may be wai ved.

CHAI R FRENCH asked if it is correct that nothing about that has
been changed.

V5. ANDERSON said that is correct.

CHAIR FRENCH said that Section 11 adds |anguage to clarify the
appointing authorities for the wvictins’ advocate and the
enpl oyees of Ofice of Victine® R ghts. Wen the ethics
committee determnes an enployee has violated standards of
conduct, the ethics comttee forwards the findings to the
appointing authority.

MS. ANDERSON said this is clean-up |anguage. It adds reference
to the Ofice of Victine’ R ghts since it 1is under the
| egi slative unbrella and subject to the ethics code.

CHAIR FRENCH said Section 12 clarifies that legislators
appointed under AS 15. 40, public nenbers of the ethics
commttee, and legislative directors nust file disclosures
wi thin 30 days of their initial appointnent.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -14- February 26, 2007



M5. ANDERSON said both the ethics conmttee and APOC recomended
this provision because «current statute does not address
di sclosures for legislators, public nenbers of the ethics
cormmittee, or legislative directors that are appointed after
financi al disclosures are due on March 15.

CHAI R FRENCH asked if the reference to “a legislator” means one
who is appointed to the ethics commttee.

V5. ANDERSON replied it applies to a legislator who is appointed
to fill a vacancy.

CHAI R FRENCH asked if this sinply addresses the notion that it
was not clear when newly appointed |egislators should have to
file their first disclosure.

V5. ANDERSON said that is correct.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI asked for a definition of |egislative
di rector.

M5. ANDERSON explained that the directors of the Legislative
Affairs Agency, Legislative Budget and Audit, Legi sl ative
Finance, and Legislative Legal and Research Services are
considered legislative directors. They nust file financia
di scl osures.

2:35: 07 PM
CHAI R FRENCH said Section 13 adds |anguage to clarify that the
Legislative Council wll be notified if the victins’ advocate

fails to file reports. This updates the statutes to take into
account that the Ofice of Victinmse’ Rights is wunder the
| egi sl ative unbrell a.

Section 14 provides an i medi ate effective date.

2: 35:45 PM
CHAIR FRENCH stated his intention to take the bill up again on
Thursday wth tighter |anguage on Section 6.

SENATOR THERRI AULT asked for an opinion on the Section 1 issue
of using office or private funds to comunicate wth
constituents within 30 days preceding an election and if it is
constitutional.

CHAI R FRENCH suggested that a legislative comunication falls
short of a newsletter.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 15- February 26, 2007



SENATOR McGUIRE said email ought to be included because sone
| egi slators send out electronic newsletters.

CHAI R FRENCH agr eed.

M5. ANDERSON recomended the conmittee review AS 24.60.030(c)
Inserting that section could deal with those issues, she said.

SENATOR THERRI AULT renoved his objection to the notion to adopt
Version M as the working docunent.

CHAI R FRENCH announced he would hold SB 13 in commttee.

There being no further business to conme before the committee
Chair French adjourned the neeting at 2:38:44 PM

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -16- February 26, 2007



